


Vision
To position the Authority as a leading, distinguished and 
effective Liquor Regulator in the country

Mission
To ensure strict regulation and control of the retail sale and  
micro-manufacture of liquor in the Province of KZN through 
effective policies, strategies and partnerships

Values
• Accountability
• Integrity
• Responsiveness
• Transparency
• Fairness
• Efficiency
• Progressiveness

The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority, listed as a schedule 3C Public Entity in terms of the PFMA and trading as KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority, 
was established in terms of the KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Licensing Act, 2010 (Act no. 06 of 2010). The KZNLA has organisational presence in 
each of the municipal districts in the Province. The District Offices are staffed by a small team comprising of a District Social Responsibility 
Practitioner, Inspector/s and a Local Committee Secretary. The District Offices have enabled the organisation to effectively perform its 
mandate and ensure ease of access to its stakeholders, and critically, the public.

ACRONYMS
AG AUDITOR-GENERAL KZNLA KWAZULU-NATAL LIQUOR AUTHORITY

CEO CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER LLS LIQUOR LICENSING SYSTEM

CFO CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER MEC MEMBER OF EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

EDTEA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,  
TOURISM AND ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS

MTEF MEDIUM TERM EXPENDITURE FRAMEWORK

DRP DISASTER RECOVERY PLAN NGO NON-GOVERNMENT ORGANISATION

HR HUMAN RESOURCES SALGA SOUTH AFRICAN LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION

IT INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
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MEC’S 
FOREWORD
MR. SIHLE ZIKALALA, MPL
MEC: KwaZulu-Natal Economic Development, 
Tourism and Environmental Affairs

The Authority has a physical visible presence in all the Municipal 
Districts of the Province, making it easily accessible to its existing and 
potential clients.

The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority, whose legislative mandate is to 
control and regulate the retail sale and micro-manufacture of liquor 
in the Province, continues to play an invaluable role in developing 
partnerships with key liquor industry stakeholders to stem the tide 
of alcohol abuse.

These partnerships strengthen the Liquor Authority’s capacity to 
deliver an efficient and effective service as the Province’s premier 
Liquor Regulator. The Authority has a physical visible presence in all 
the Municipal Districts of the Province, making it easily accessible 
to its existing and potential clients. Its mandate is derived from the 
KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Licensing Act 2010 (Act 06 of 2010) as amended.

In this financial year, the Liquor Authority is destined to improve its 
licensing systems and processes when it implements a new modern 
Liquor Management System. This system will undeniably enhance 
operational efficiencies of the entity.

I am encouraged that our liquor outreach education programmes 
are gaining traction throughout the Province. The need to establish 
and maintain an integrated and co-ordinated social responsibility 
programme cannot be overemphasised. The Entity has already 
embarked on a process to identify and monitor the unique effects 
caused by alcohol abuse and irresponsible liquor trading. The need to 
educate the community and potential and current traders regarding 
the economic opportunities available in the liquor industry, are in line 
with our developmental priorities in the Province.

For the ensuing year, the Liquor Authority is guided by its strategic plan, 
which sets out very clearly what strategic outcomes are envisaged.  
The strategic plan is a result and a product of a variety of engagements 
between the shareholder (government), the Management Team and the 
Liquor Authority’s Governance Board. I am pleased with the processes 
that were undertaken that led to the identification of measurable 
outcomes for the Liquor Authority. I am convinced that the targets set 
in the Annual Performance Plan are realistic and achievable through 
proper evaluation and continuous monitoring.

I am reasonably satisfied that in the pursuing year, the Authority will 
give serious attention to improving service delivery whilst at the 
same time pursuing the province’s commitment to radical, social and 
economic transformation.

I am looking forward to working more closely with the Board and the 
Management Team of the Authority in this financial year.

Mr. Sihle Zikalala, MPL
MEC: KwaZulu-Natal Economic Development, 
Tourism and Environmental Affairs
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The KwaZulu-Natal (KZN) Liquor Authority was established on 1 August 2012, 

with a legislative mandate to help execute the MEC’s powers to regulate the 

retail sale and micro-manufacture of liquor in the Province of KwaZulu-Natal. 

Since its inception in 2012, the Entity has grown by leaps and bounds and 

continues to pursue full compliance with the Liquor Act through the operations 

of its various business units.

During the year under review, the Entity, having already established its core 

operations, introduced new and innovative strategies to augment its service and 

extend its reach in the Province. In an attempt to address the statutory mandate 

of reducing the socio-economic impact of alcohol and the associated social and 

behavioural challenges, we pursued the trajectory of public education strongly. 

We will continue relentlessly to raise awareness on the negative impacts of 

underage drinking and the abuse of alcohol within our communities, thereby 

responding to the national call to address social problems collectively.

The Entity’s Business Units have also developed strong multi-sectoral stakeholder 

relations with, amongst others, key law enforcement agencies in order to execute 

its mandate through synergised operations. As we analyse our strategic gains, 

we must appreciate the role and contributions of the Local Committees, which 

provide the community with direct access to our core service and encourages new 

entrants into the market. The establishment of the Liquor Industry Stakeholders 

Forum will further extend our reach in attempting to grow the small business 

industry and encourage responsible business practice while balancing the best 

interests of society.  

In further extending our services to the public, the Entity has successfully 

established an innovative, fully functional Call Centre which will be complimented 

by a new technological system to improve turnaround times, thereby improving 

the efficacy and impact of its business processes. As we review and continuously 

improve on the delivery of our core mandates, the Entity together with the 

shareholder department has begun a process of revisiting the legislation and 

drafting proposals for amendments to the Liquor Act which is set to close all 

the gaps identified through execution over the years.  

The Entity’s success is not only owed to its foot-soldiers, but also to the unwavering 

support of its Management team. It is through their operations, networking and 

guidance that we continue to strengthen relations with the diverse stakeholders 

within the liquor industry. 

My earnest appreciation is extended to our honourable MEC, Mr Sihle Zikalala, 

MPL, and the shareholder department for the leadership and support given. 

My gratitude is further extended to the entire KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority 

Board of Directors whose support has paved the way for the growth, development 

and success of the KZN Liquor Authority. 

In conclusion, the Entity remains committed to giving real meaning to its 

legislative mandate – and continue to ensure visibility within our communities 

and provide further assistance in the liquor application process. While liquor 

may positively contribute towards the economy, let’s continue to leave no 

stone unturned in our quest of ensuring continuous compliance and education. 

Ms. M.P. Myeni

Chairperson: Board of Directors

KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority

CHAIRPERSON’S 
STATEMENT 
MS. M.P. MYENI
Chairperson: Board of Directors

During the year under review, the Entity, having already established its 
core operations, introduced new and innovative strategies to augment 
its service and extend its reach in the Province.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MR. M. THANGO
BOARD MEMBER

INKOSI M.I .TEMBE
BOARD MEMBER

BRIG. M.V. KHESWA
BOARD MEMBER

MR. S. MKHIZE
SHAREHOLDER REPRESENTATIVE

MR. E.M. MASHILE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
EXOFFICIO MEMBER

MR. B.B. MBANJWA
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
EXOFFICIO MEMBER

MS. S. PILLAY
DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON

PROF. B. DUMISA
BOARD MEMBER

DR. C.N. KHUMALO
BOARD MEMBER

MS. M.P. MYENI
CHAIRPERSON
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NAME DESIGNATION APPOINTMENT DATE

Ms. M.P. Myeni Chairperson 01 May 2017

Adjudication Committee Member 31 May 2017

Ms. S. Pillay (Silochini) Deputy Chairperson 01 May 2017

Adjudication Committee Member 31 May 2017

Social and Ethics Committee Chairperson 01 May 2017

Dr. C.N. Khumalo Board Member 01 May 2015

HR and Remuneration Committee Chairperson 31 May 2017

Brig. M.V. Kheswa Board Member 01 May 2017

Social and Ethics Committee Member 31 May 2017

Mr. M. Thango Board Member 01 May 2017

Audit and Risk Committee Chairperson 31 May 2017

HR and Remuneration Committee Member 31 May 2017

Prof. B. Dumisa Board Member 01 May 2017

Adjudication Committee Chairperson 31 May 2017

Inkosi M.I. Tembe Board Member 01 May 2017

Social and Ethics Committee Member 31 May 2017

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS

MEMBER DESIGNATION

Mr. E.M. Mashile Chief Executive Officer

Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa Chief Financial Officer

Mr. S. Mkhize/Ms. N. Thavar Shareholder Representative

THE KWAZULU-NATAL LIQUOR AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMPRISED OF THE FOLLOWING 
MEMBERS DURING THE 2017/18 FINANCIAL YEAR:

MEMBER DESIGNATION DATE 
APPOINTED

OTHER COMMITTEES MEETINGS ATTENDED

30/05/17 18/08/17 22/09/17 08/12/17 09/03/18

Ms. M.P. Myeni Chairperson 01/05/2017 Adjudication 
Committee   

√ √ √ √ √

Ms. S. Pillay 
(Silochini)

Deputy 
Chairperson 

01/05/2017 Adjudication 
Committee/Social and 
Ethics Chairperson

√ √ √ √ √

Dr. C.N. Khumalo Member 01/05/2015 HR and Remuneration √ √ √ √ √

Brig. M.V. Kheswa Member 01/05/2017 Social and  
Ethics Committee

√ √ A A A

Mr. M. Thango Member 01/05/2017 Audit and Risk/HR and 
Remuneration

√ √ √ √ √

Prof. B. Dumisa Member 01/05/2017 Adjudication √ √ √ √ √

Inkosi M.I. Tembe Member 01/05/2017 Social and  
Ethics Committee

√ √ √ √ √

Mr. E.M. Mashile Ex-Officio 
Member

N/A HR and Remuneration/
Audit and Risk  
Committee/Social and 
Ethics Committee

√ √ √ √ √

Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa Ex-Officio 
Member

N/A HR and Remuneration/
Audit and Risk  
Committee

√ √ √ √ √

Mr. S. Mkhize Shareholder 
Representative

N/A N/A (N. Thavar) (N. Thavar) √ √ A

√ = Attended          A = Apology          N/A = Not Applicable

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS 2017/18
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SPECIAL BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDANCE 2017/18
MEMBER DESIGNATION MEETINGS ATTENDED

26/04/17 30/06/17 29/01/18

Ms. M.P. Myeni Chairperson NYA √ √

Ms. S. Pillay (Silochini) Deputy Chairperson √ √ √

Dr. C.N. Khumalo Member √ √ √

Brig. M.V. Kheswa Member A A A

Mr. M. Thango Member NYA √ √

Prof. B. Dumisa Member NYA √ √

Inkosi M.I. Tembe Member NYA √ √

Mr. E.M. Mashile Ex-Officio Member √ √ √

Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa Ex-Officio Member √ √ √

Mr. S. Mkhize Shareholder Representative NYA A A

√ = Attended          A = Apology          NYA = Not Yet Appointed

HR AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE  
MEMBER DESIGNATION MEETINGS ATTENDED

08/05/17 03/08/17  16/11/17 04/12/17 22/02/18

Dr. C. N. Khumalo Chairperson √ √ √ √ √

Mr. M. Thango Member NYA √ √ √ √

Ms. N.E. Mcoyi Independent Member √ √ √ √ √

Mr. E.M. Mashile Ex-Officio Member √ √ √ √ √

Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa Ex-Officio Member √ √ √ √ √

Ms. Z. Mtambo Acting HR Manager √ A (S. Manelli) (S. Manelli) (S. Manelli)

√ = Attended          A = Apology          NYA = Not Yet Appointed

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 
MEMBER DESIGNATION MEETINGS ATTENDED

22/05/17 04/08/17 10/08/17 
(Special)

13/09/17 
(Special)

17/11/17 05/12/17 
(Special)

23/02/18

Mr. M. Thango Chairperson NYA √ √ √ √ √ √

Mr. T. Zulu Independent Member √ √ √ A √ √ A

Ms. C. Coetzee Independent Member √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Mr. E.M. Mashile Ex-Officio Member √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa Ex-Officio Member √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Mr. V. Nakpan Internal Auditors √ √ √ A √ √ √

Ms. B. Mapisa Shareholder 
Representative

√ A √ A A √ √

Mr. T. Madlala Treasury 
Representative

√ √ A A A A A

√ = Attended          A = Apology          NYA = Not Yet Appointed
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BOARD ADJUDICATION COMMITTEE 

SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE

MEMBER DESIGNATION MEETINGS ATTENDED

20/04/17 30/06/17 31/07/17 08/08/17 29/09/17 20/10/17 01/12/17 06/12/17 
(Special)

30/01/18 07/03/18

Prof. B. Dumisa Chairperson NYA √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Ms. M.P. Myeni Member NYA √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Ms. S. Pillay 
(Silochini)

Member √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Ms. S. Pillay 
(Sulosh)

Member √ R R R R R R R R R

Mr. E.M. Mashile Ex-Officio Member A √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Mr. M. Tsautse Ex-Officio Member A √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Ms. L. Sibiya Ex-Officio Member N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A √ √ √ √ √

MEMBER DESIGNATION MEETINGS ATTENDED

02/08/17 15/11/17 20/02/18

Ms. S. Pillay (Silochini) Chairperson √ √ √

Inkosi M.I. Tembe Member √ √ √

Brig. M.V. Kheswa Member √ A A

Mr. E.M. Mashile Ex-Officio Member √ √ √

√ = Attended          A = Apology          R = Resigned          N/A = Not Applicable          NYA = Not Yet Appointed

√ = Attended          A = Apology
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER’S REPORT

MR. E.M. MASHILE
Chief Executive Officer:
KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority

Liquor abuse in our Province remains our singular concern and the 
need for education and awareness on the harmful effects of alcohol 
cannot be over-emphasised.

The period under review presented a number of challenges for the 
KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority.  These challenges were however not 
insurmountable. Credit must go to the Executive and Management 
team and staff for walking that extra mile and going beyond the call of 
duty to ensure that we meet the targets that we set out for ourselves in 
the Annual Performance Plan for the financial year ending 2017/2018.

At the close of the financial year, our records reflect 8 291 licensed 
premises in the Province, a breakdown of licenses per District is captured 
in the Annual Report. 

For the period under review, our Compliance Inspectors conducted 
10 244 routine inspections to ensure that traders comply with the 
KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Licensing Act.  

I am pleased to report that the Entity conducted 143 joint operations 
with law enforcement agencies which resulted in 245 illegal liquor 
outlets charged and closed. In addition, 23 068 376 litres of alcohol was 
confiscated and 477 fines were issued to errant traders. Credit must go 
to the South African Police Services for their continued co-operation, 
support and their invaluable contribution in the regulation and control 
of alcohol in the Province.

Liquor abuse in our Province remains our singular concern and the 
need for education and awareness on the harmful effects of alcohol 
cannot be over-emphasised. Our Social Responsibility Practitioners 
were hard at work educating vulnerable communities on the negative 
impacts of alcohol. This work was extended to liquor traders, placing 
great importance of trading responsibly. The Annual Report reflects 
the number of intervention and workshops that were conducted.

The Entity maintained a high level of compliance with the applicable 
relevant legislation and pursued strict fiscal discipline in the application 
of our limited resources. 

In conclusion, my gratitude goes to the Chairperson and the members 
of the Board and Board Committees, Local Committee members, 
the HOD of the Department of Economic Development, Tourism and 
Environmental Affairs, the Executive Management team, Managers and 
staff of the KZN Liquor Authority for the exemplary manner in which 
all of them supported Management in fulfilling our responsibilities as 
the premier Liquor Regulator in the Province.

I remain optimistic that in the ensuing financial year, we will continue to 
strengthen our internal control processes, systems and work processes 
with the express purpose of improving service delivery. The acquisition 
of a new Liquor Management System in the New Year will give greater 
impetus to deliver a better and faster service to our customers.

Mr. E.M. Mashile
Chief Executive Officer: 
KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY 
AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY 
FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT
To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm the following: 

• All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report is consistent with the Annual Financial Statements audited by the Auditor-General.

• The Annual Report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

•	 The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the Annual Report as issued by National Treasury.

• The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) standards 
applicable to the Public Entity.

• The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements and for the judgements made in this information.

•	 The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control that has been designed to provide 
reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human resources information and the Annual 
Financial Statements.

•	 The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.

In our opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources information and the financial 
affairs of the public entity for the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

Yours faithfully

Mr. E.M. Mashile Ms. M.P. Myeni
Chief Executive Officer: Chairperson: Board of Directors
KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority
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REGISTERED OFFICE: 1st Floor, The Marine Building 
   22 Dorothy Nyembe Street
   (Gardner Street), Durban, 4000

AUDITORS:  External – Auditor-General
    Internal – KZN Provincial Treasury –
    Internal Audit Unit

BANKERS:  ABSA Bank,
    KZN Provincial Banking Branch

LEGISLATIVE MANDATE
The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority is established in terms of the 
KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Licensing Act No. 06 of 2010 to:

• Consider, grant or reject liquor licence applications in the Province;

• Issue licences in terms of Chapter 6 of this Act;

• Enhance accessibility of liquor licences in the Province;

• Ensure a uniform, fair, equitable and transparent process in the
issuing of liquor licences;

• Work with the responsible Member of the Executive Council,
the Department, municipalities and the liquor industry in the Province 
in order to implement and promote national and provincial liquor 
policies and norms and standards; and

• To implement and promote initiatives which address the objects
of the Act as provided for in Section 2(b) and (d) of the KZN Liquor 
Licensing Act. No. 06 of 2010 as amended.

STATUTORY MANDATE OF 
THE LIQUOR AUTHORITY
The foremost aim of the KZN Liquor Authority is to ensure that the 
objectives of the KZN Liquor Licensing Act are accomplished. The KZN 
Liquor Licensing Act lists the following as the objectives:

•	To	provide	for	the	regulation	of	the	micro-manufacturing	and	retail	
sale of liquor;

•	To	reduce	the	socio-economic	and	other	costs	of	alcohol	abuse;

•	To	provide	for	public	participation	in	the	consideration	of	applicants	
for registration; and

•	To	promote	the	development	of	a	responsible	and	sustainable	retail	
and micro-manufacturing liquor industry in a manner that facilitates:
- The entry of new participants into the industry;
- Diversity of ownership in the industry; and
- An ethos of social responsibility in the industry.

STAKEHOLDER ANALYSIS
The KZN Liquor Authority identified a number of key stakeholders, 
and has furthermore, through its District Offices, established practical 
relationships with these critical stakeholders, for the purpose of 
ensuring the key objectives of the organisation are achieved. 
The organisation acknowledges that for the success and sustainability 
of the Sector, collaborative relationship with the liquor industry and 
the community are required. The Authority understands that public, 
private and community partnerships are critical for the organisation 
to remain relevant and effective.

KEY STAKEHOLDERS INCLUDE:
•	Government	 departments	 (national,	 provincial	 and	 local),	 and	

government structures such as SALGA;

•	NGO’s,	liquor	traders	and	liquor	trader	associations;

•	Liquor	manufacturers	and	distributors;

•	Law	enforcement	agencies;

•	Justice	cluster	and	other	cabinet	clusters;

•	Media;

•	Existing	community	structures;

•	National	and	provincial	liquor	authorities;	and

•	Suppliers/service	providers.

STRATEGIC GOALS OF 
THE LIQUOR AUTHORITY
The following key strategic goals are required to give effect to the 
statutory mandate and strategic objectives of the KZN Liquor Authority. 
These strategic goals and objectives serve over the Medium Term 
Expenditure Framework (MTEF) period to enable KZNLA to achieve 
on its mandate.

STRATEGIC GOALS
•	To	provide	for	an	effective	regulatory	environment	

•	To	 implement	effective	corporate	governance	processes	 in	 the
Liquor Authority

•	To	develop	and	implement	an	effective	communications	strategy	for	
the organisation 

•	To	attract,	nurture	and	retain	skills	within	the	organisation	

•	To	implement	sound	financial	management	and	effective	and	reliable	
information management systems

•	To	implement	an	effective	liquor	licensing	process

•	To	ensure	compliance	with	the	liquor	licensing	legislation

•	To	advocate	for	an	informed,	efficient	and	seamless	liquor
regulatory environment
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INTRODUCTION 
The KZN Liquor Authority had determined Performance Indicators and Targets for implementation during the 2017/18 financial year. The process 
of determining the performance indicators was derived from the strategic guidance provided by the Board of Directors who then approved the 
APP for 2017/18.

The Entity, reports below, on Annual Performance, in line with the Annual Performance Plan for 2017/18 as approved. 

ORGANISATIONAL BUSINESS UNITS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER

CORPORATE
SERVICES

LICENSING AND 
ADMINISTRATION

COMPLIANCE AND 
ENFORCEMENT

SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY

MEC: EDTEA

KZNLA BOARD
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PROGRAMME 1: OFFICE OF THE CEO AND THE BOARD
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
•	To provide strategic direction and leadership to the organisation

•	To provide good guidance and counsel to the liquor industry to ensure proper control and regulation of liquor in the Province

• To ensure compliance with relevant legislations, prescriptions, corporate governance and financial reporting standards

• To oversee risk matters within the organisation

NB: The following performance indicators were reviewed in quarter 3

1. Percentages of board resolutions implemented

2. Number of strategic planning sessions, the target was increased to 2 to include Board strategic planning and the organisational strategic 
planning session

3. Number of performance reports submitted

PROGRAMME NAME: OFFICE OF THE CEO AND THE BOARD  

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES 

MILESTONES 
ACHIEVED

DEVIATION 
FROM PLANNED 
TARGET 

COMMENT ON 
DEVIATION 

Percentage of Board resolutions implemented. 100% 100% 0 None

Number of Strategic Planning sessions held. 2 2 1 Business Units were 
engaged in their Units 
Planning Sessions and 
delayed the entire Entity’s 
Strat Plan.  

Number of Performance Reports submitted. 4 2 None None

Number of Performance Review sessions held. 4 4 quarterly review 
sessions.

None None 

Number of Policy Review sessions held. 1 1 policy review 
session.

None None

Number of sessions held with Industry Players. 2 2 None None

Number of Board and Board Committee 
meetings held to ensure compliance with 
all legislations and corporate governance 
requirements:

• Number of Board meetings held to provide 
strategic direction to the organisation.

• 4 • 6 • 2 • 2 additional special
Board meetings were held.

• Number of Board meetings held to assist the 
Board to discharge its fiduciary duties.

• 12 • 12 • None • None

• Number of Board Adjudication Committee 
meetings held.

• 12 • 10 • 2 • There were no matters to 
be considered by the 
Board Adjudication 
Committee.

Organisational Risk Assessment sessions held. 1 1 None None

Number of sessions coordinated to monitor 
implemented risk register.

12 12 None None

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION ...continued
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NB: The following performance indicators under Communications division were reviewed in quarter 3

1. Number of communications policies developed and implemented

2. Number of strategic documents finalised in compliance with legislative requirements

NB: The following performance indicators under Human Resources division were reviewed in quarter 3

1. Number of Human Resources programmes implemented in line with HR plan was reviewed to be “Human Resource Strategy developed
and approved”

2. Percentage of performance management was reviewed to be “Number of performance management sessions completed”

3. Percentage of vacancy rate in the organisation 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
• To develop and implement an effective Communications Strategy for the Organisation 

PROGRAMME NAME: OFFICE OF THE CEO AND THE BOARD

SUB-PROGRAMME: COMMUNICATIONS 

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES 

MILESTONES 
ACHIEVED

DEVIATION 
FROM PLANNED 
TARGET 

COMMENT ON DEVIATION 

Communications Strategy developed  
and approved.

1 0 1 The Service Provider is currently 
developing a communication and 
marketing strategy and the expected 
completion date is 30 May 2018.

Number of Communications Policies 
developed and implemented.

2 0 2 Communications Policies were  
at a draft stage at the end of the 
financial year.

Number of internal and external 
Communications plan activities implemented 
in line with the Communications Strategy of 
the organisation.

8 2 6 Collating, designing and print  
delayed publication. 

Number of strategic documents finalised in 
compliance with legislative requirements.

2 2 None None

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
•	To provide for effective and efficient human resources systems within the organisation

• To ensure/oversee statutory and regulatory compliance 

PROGRAMME NAME: OFFICE OF THE CEO AND THE BOARD

SUB-PROGRAMME: HUMAN RESOURCES  

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES 

MILESTONES 
ACHIEVED

DEVIATION 
FROM PLANNED 
TARGET 

COMMENT ON DEVIATION 

Number of Human Resources programmes 
implemented in line with the HR Plan.

10 10 None None

Number of Human Resources Strategy developed 
and approved.

1 0 1 Human Resources Strategy 
is in the draft phase and 
undergoing consultation.

Number of performance management completed. 2 2 None None

Percentage of vacancy rate in the organisation. 100% 8% 92% Process delayed due to 
Provincial cost cutting and 
Austerity measures.

Number of Human Resources reports developed and 
submitted in compliance with statutory requirements. 

2 2 None None
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PROGRAMME 2: CORPORATE SERVICES BUSINESS UNIT
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
•	To ensure statutory and regulatory compliance 

• To maintain efficient and effective supply chain management systems 

• To maintain efficient and effective financial management systems

• To maintain efficient and effective information technology infrastructure 

PROGRAMME NAME: CORPORATE SERVICES 

SUB-PROGRAMME: FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT, ASSETS AND BUDGET

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES 

MILESTONES 
ACHIEVED

DEVIATION 
FROM 
PLANNED 
TARGET 

COMMENT 
ON 
DEVIATION 

Number of finance policies reviewed and approved. 19 19 None None

Number of reports developed and submitted in 
compliance with statutory requirements.

13 13 None None

Procurement plan developed and implementation 
monitored.

1 1 None None

Number of reports on implementation of approved 
procurement plan.

3 3 None None

Number of Information Technology policies reviewed 
and approved.

14 14 None None

Unqualified Audit opinion issued. Clean Audit opinion Unqualified Audit 
opinion

None None

Number of IT Steering Committees held and reports 
submitted to ensure effective IT Governance.

4 4 None None

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION ...continued

NB: The following performance indicator under Corporate services were reviewed in quarter 3

1. Number of information technology policies reviewed and implemented was changed to “Number of information technology policies reviewed 
and approved”

2. Number of initiatives implemented in line with the IT strategy was changed to “Number of IT steering committee meeting held and reports 
submitted to ensure effective IT governance
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PROGRAMME NAME: LICENSING AND ADMINISTRATION

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR PLANNED ACTIVITIES MILESTONES ACHIEVED DEVIATION 
FROM 
PLANNED 
TARGET 

COMMENT 
ON 
DEVIATION 

Number of new liquor license 
applications processed.

All applications received 
are processed.

Total number of applications 
received: 595

S41 = 208
S52 = 195
S72 = 24
S74 = 151
S75 = 17

None None

Number of applications submitted 
for adjudication.

All applications per 
section considered.

All applications per Section 
considered by the Adjudication 
Committee: 553

S41 = 185 
Granted 167 
Refused 10
Postponed 08

S52 = 139 
Granted 130
Postponed 9

S68 = 1
Granted 1

S69 = 1
Granted 1

S72 = 59
Granted 54
Postponed 05

S74 = 126
Granted 121
Refused 03
Postponed 02

S75 = 26
Granted 25
Postponed 01

None None

Number of license renewals 
processed.

Total number of complete 
applications received.

2 904 Renewal applications received. None None 

Total number of days taken to 
process and finalise liquor license 
applications.

Section 41 -112 days;
Section 52 - 14 days;
Section 64 - 60 days;
Section 72 - 60 days;
Section 74 - 60 days;
Section 75 - 112 days; and
Section 77 - 14 days.

Applications finalised within the 
stipulated timeframe: 337

S41 = 115
S52 = 140
S74 = 79
S75 = 3

None None

PROGRAMME 3: LICENSING AND ADMINISTRATION BUSINESS UNIT
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
•	Regulating the liquor licensing industry by processing all liquor licensing applications received

• Develop and implement an effective, efficient and administrative licensing procedure
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PROGRAMME NAME: LICENSING AND ADMINISTRATION

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES 

MILESTONES ACHIEVED DEVIATION 
FROM 
PLANNED 
TARGET 

COMMENT ON 
DEVIATION 

Total number of days taken by the local 
committee to consider liquor license 
applications.

Applications 
considered within 
14 days.

Applications finalised within the 
stipulated timeframe: 91

Section 41 = 85

Section 75 = 6

None None

Total number of days taken by the 
Adjudication Committees to consider 
liquor license applications.

Applications 
considered within 
14 days.

Applications finalised within the 
stipulated timeframe: 496

Section 41 = 181 

Section 50 = 16 

Section 52 = 140 

Section 69 = 8

Section 72 = 17

Section 74 = 123

Section 75 = 11

None None

Reports on effective functioning of 
Local Committees.

4 2 2 Key Performance 
Indicators reviewed.

Reports on effective functioning of 
the Adjudication Committee and 
Administration.

4 2 2 Key Performance 
Indicators reviewed.

Report on the effectiveness of the LMS. 1 2 1 Key Performance 
Indicators reviewed.

Keep and maintain an up to date 
register of all decisions of the  
KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority.

1 0 1 Performance Indicator 
was discontinued.

Publish records of licenses or permits 
issued in terms of Section 23 (2) (c) of 
the Act.

1 1 None None

PROGRAMME 3: LICENSING AND ADMINISTRATION BUSINESS UNIT ...continued

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
•	Regulating the liquor licensing industry by processing all liquor licensing applications received

• Develop and implement an effective, efficient and administrative licensing procedure

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION ...continued

NB: The following performance indicators under Licensing and Administration business unit were reviewed in quarter 3

1. Number of new applications processed, number of applications submitted for adjudication and number of license renewals processed were 
combined to be “Total number of days taken to process and finalise liquor license applications”

2. Two new indicators were included which are “Total number of days taken by the Local Committee to consider liquor license applications and 
Total number of days taken by the Adjudication Committee to consider liquor license applications”

3. Reports on effective functioning of local committee was combined to be “Number of reports on the effective functioning of the Adjudication 
and local Committees”

4. One strategic objective was taken out which is to maintain accurate licensing records for the KZN Liquor Authority

5. Report on the effectiveness of the LMS, keep and maintain an up to date register of all decisions of the KZNLA and publish records of licenses or 
permits issued in terms of section 23(2) (c) of the act was all reviewed



KZN LIQUOR AUTHORITY                            ANNUAL REPORT 2017  201821

PROGRAMME NAME: COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES 

MILESTONES ACHIEVED DEVIATION 
FROM 
PLANNED 
TARGET 

COMMENT ON 
DEVIATION 

Percentage of pre-inspection reports 
done on all applications.

100% 100%

S64
- 840 received
- 882 submitted
- 406 exceeded timeframe
- 356 within timeframe

S72
- 104 received
- 57 submitted
- 55 within timeframe
- 2 exceeded timeframe

S45
- 103 received
- 105 submitted
- 72 within timeframe
- 16 out of timeframe

Final inspection:
14 received

None None

PROGRAMME 4: COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT BUSINESS UNIT 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
•	Provide support in the license application process 

•	To implement an effective and efficient compliance and enforcement process

•	Implement strategies to engage stakeholders on issues of non-compliance

COMPARISON OF LICENSES ISSUED PER DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY FOR TRADING YEAR 2017 AND 2018

OVERALL LICENSES PER DISTRICT AS AT END MARCH 2018

DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY TOTAL

Amajuba District Municipality 386

eThekwini Metropolitan Municipality 2 992

iLembe District Municipality 473

Sisonke District Municipality 310

Ugu District Municipality 860

Umgungundlovu District Municipality 965

Umkhanyakude District Municipality 399

Umzinyathi District Municipality 284

Uthukela District Municipality 467

Uthungulu District Municipality 744

Zululand District Municipality 411

Grand Total 8 291
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PROGRAMME NAME: COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT  ...continued

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES 

MILESTONES ACHIEVED DEVIATION 
FROM 
PLANNED 
TARGET 

COMMENT ON DEVIATION 

Number of days taken to issue  
pre-inspection reports.

All requested 
inspection 
reports are done 
and submitted 
within 14 days.

No. of S64 applications 
received: 3 093

3 069: S64 inspections 
done within 14 days 

S72 - 28 (within 14 days) 

S75 - 9 (within 14 days)

S45 -193 (within 14 days)

Final Inspection – 46 
(within 14 days)  

None None

Number of reports submitted on 
individuals disqualified in terms  
of the Act.

4 3 None None

Number of interventions to ensure 
compliance by license holders and 
identify illegal traders:

• Number of inspection Blitz conducted.

• Number of routine inspections 
conducted.

• 44

• 8 200

• 114

• 9 954

• 70

• 1 754

• 70 Blitz operations 
were organised by other  
key stakeholders and  
KZNLA participated.

• Over performance was due to 
the fact that the inspectors 
are conducting routine 
inspection simultaneously 
with the inspection for annual 
renewals of licenses.

Each complaint is received,  
investigated and finalised within  
the stipulated timeframe.

60 days 4 reports finalised within 
60 days.

None 3 considered outside the  
60 day stipulated timeframe.

Number of reports on  
illegal traders identified.

4 reports 4 reports None None

Number of compliance stakeholder 
forums held.

44 33 11 11 meetings could not proceed 
due to lack of quorum.

PROGRAMME 4: COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT BUSINESS UNIT ...continued

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
•	Provide support in the license application process 

•	To implement an effective and efficient compliance and enforcement process

•	Implement strategies to engage stakeholders on issues of non-compliance

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION ...continued

NB: The following performance indicators under Compliance and Enforcement business unit were reviewed in quarter 3

1. Percentage of pre-inspection reports done on all applications was reviewed to be “Number of days taken to issue pre-inspection reports”

2. Maintain a databased of disqualified individuals in terms of the act was reviewed to be “Number of reports submitted on individuals disqualified 
in terms of the Act”

3. Number of routine inspections conducted, (The annual target was reviewed from 9 400 to 8 200 which is in line with the number active of licenses)

4. Established and maintain stakeholder forums, ( The indicator was changed to “Number of compliance stakeholder forums held “ and the quarterly 
target was increased from 33 forums to 44 forums)
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PROGRAMME NAME: SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR PLANNED 
ACTIVITIES 

MILESTONES ACHIEVED DEVIATION 
FROM 
PLANNED 
TARGET 

COMMENT ON 
DEVIATION 

Develop a list of Social Responsibility 
Programmes for the MEC’s approval.

1 1 None None

Number of programmes implemented 
targeting socio-economic effects of 
alcohol abuse:

• Number of school programmes 
conducted to reduce the  
socio-economic and other effects  
of alcohol abuse.

• Number of corporate/workshop 
programmes conducted to reduce  
the socio-economic and other effects 
of alcohol.

• 48

• 48

• 83

• 45

• 35

• 3

• 35 additional schools 
were visited due to OSS 
led interventions.

• This activity is dependent 
on corporate availability 
and willingness to host 
the KZNLA.

Number of KZNLA initiated seasonal 
awareness programmes implemented.

3 4 1 To achieve greater impact, 
an additional programme 
was planned and held.

Number of common purpose stakeholders 
engaged and educated to assist in the 
reduction of administrative red tape.

50 101 51 Over achieved by demand 
and request.

Number of community participation 
education and awareness programmes 
conducted.

4 0 4 60 community events were 
supported upon invite 
from stakeholders.

Number of potential, new and current 
licensed liquor trader’s workshops held 
in relation to the Social Responsibility 
Programmes approved by the MEC.

120 21 99 Key Performance  
Indicators reviewed.

Number of monitoring and tracking 
reports on SR Programmes implemented 
by Liquor Traders.

240 0 240 Key Performance  
Indicators reviewed.

Number of workshops held to facilitate 
the entry of new and unlicensed liquor 
traders into the liquor industry.

120 136 16 16 unplanned workshops 
were facilitated.

Number of current liquor trader workshops 
held on all licensing related matters.

120 105 15 Non-availability  
of attendees.

Number of research reports produced 
to support the development of a 
knowledge hub for the Industry.

1 0 1 Due to cost cutting 
measures, the KZNLA  
only received a 3%  
budget increase for the 
2017/2018 financial year, 
resulting in this indicator 
not receiving budget.

Number of trend analysis reports 
produced on current and pertinent 
issues on the Liquor Industry.

4 4 0 0

PROGRAMME 5: SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY BUSINESS UNIT 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
•	To ensure that there are mechanisms developed to reduce the socio-economic and other effects of alcohol abuse

•	Facilitate mechanisms to ensure public participation and good inter-governmental relations in the liquor licensing process

•	To facilitate, develop and ensure a responsible and sustainable liquor industry

NB: The following performance indicators under Social responsibility business unit were reviewed in quarter 3

1. Develop a list of Social Responsibility programmes for the MEC`s approval

2. Number of potential, new and current licensed liquor trader workshops held in relation to the Social Responsibility Programmes approved by 
the MEC

3. Number of Monitoring and tracking reports on SR programmes implemented by Liquor traders

4. Number of research reports produced to support the development of a knowledge hub for the industry
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The KZNLA Board has absolute responsibility for the performance of the 
Public Entity and is fully accountable to the shareholder (Department of 
Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs – EDTEA) 
for such performance. The Board Charter sets out the responsibilities 
of Board Members and confirms the Board’s responsibility for the 
adoption of strategic plans, monitoring of operational performance 
and management, determination of policy and processes to ensure the 
integrity of the KZN Liquor Authority’s Risk management and internal 
controls, communication policy, and director selection, orientation 
and evaluation. 

The Board provides strategic direction to the organisation and is further 
responsible for the development of a fraud prevention policy, as well as 
other governance structures, which include management of processes 
to minimise conflict of interest, implementation of code of conduct, 
as well as safety, health and other related issues facing the entity.

Management is responsible and accounts to the Board for developing, 
implementing and monitoring the processes as outlined and integrating 
them into operational activities of the Entity.

The Board established appropriate governance structures. Guided by 
the recommendation of the King Code on Corporate Governance and 
the circumstances of the Public Entity, the KZN Liquor Authority has 
established the following Board Committees, which are appointed by 
the Chairperson of the Board:

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
The Audit and Risk Committee is chaired by a member of the Board who 
is appointed by the Board chairperson and is comprised of majority of 
the members, which are financially literate. The Board has appointed 
two independent non-executive directors as members of the Audit 
and Risk Committee. The Audit and Risk Committee has terms of 
reference, which outlines the composition and operations, and guides 
the functioning of, the Committee. The Audit and Risk Committee 
is responsible for improving management reporting by overseeing 
audit functions, internal controls and the financial reporting process. 
The Committee is further responsible for monitoring and managing 
risk issues as delegated by the Board. 

The committee’s primary responsibility is as follows: 

• INTEGRATED REPORTING
The Committee oversees integrated reporting, and in particular the 
Committee must:

• Regard all factors and risks that may impact on the integrity of the 
integrated report, including factors that may predispose management 
to present a misleading picture, significant judgments and reporting 
decisions made, monitoring or enforcement actions by a regulatory 
body, any evidence that brings into question previously published 
information, forward-looking statements or information;

• Review the Annual Financial Statements, interim reports, preliminary 
or provisional result announcements, summarised integrated 
information, any other intended release of price-sensitive information 
and prospectuses, trading statements and similar documents;

• Comment in the Annual Financial Statements on the financial 
statements, the accounting practices and the effectiveness of the 
internal financial controls;

• Review the disclosure of sustainability issues in the integrated report 
to ensure that it is reliable and does not conflict with the financial 
information;

• Recommend to the Board, the engagement of an external assurance 
provider on material sustainability issues;

• Recommend the integrated report for approval by the Board;

• Consider the frequency for issuing interim results;

• Consider whether the external auditor should perform assurance 
procedures on the interim results;

• Review the content of the summarised information for whether it 
provides a balanced view; and

• Engage the external auditors to provide assurance on the summarised 
financial information.

• COMBINED ASSURANCE
The Committee will ensure that a combined assurance model is 
applied to provide a coordinated approach to all assurance activities, 
and in particular, the Committee should:

•	Ensure that the combined assurance received is appropriate to 
address all the significant risks facing the company; and

• Monitor the relationship between the external assurance providers 
and the company.
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• FINANCE FUNCTION 
AND FINANCIAL DIRECTOR
The Committee reviews the expertise, resources and experience 
of the company’s finance function, and discloses the results of the 
review in the integrated report. The Committee also considers and 
satisfies itself on the suitability of the expertise and experience of the 
financial director every year.

• INTERNAL AUDIT
The Committee is responsible for overseeing the internal audit, and 
in particular, the Committee must:

•	Be responsible for the appointment, performance assessment and/
or dismissal of the Chief Audit Executive;

•	Approve the internal audit plan; and

•	Ensure that the internal audit function is subject to an independent 
quality review, as and when the Committee determines it appropriate.

• RISK MANAGEMENT
The Committee is an integral component of the risk management 
process and specifically, the Committee must oversee:

•	Financial reporting risks;
•	 Internal financial controls;
•	Fraud risks as it relates to financial reporting; and
•	 IT risks as it relates to financial reporting.

• EXTERNAL AUDIT
The Committee is responsible for recommending the appointment 
of the external auditor and to oversee the external audit process and 
in this regard, the Committee must:

•	Approve the terms of engagement and remuneration for the external 
audit engagement;

•	Monitor and report on the independence of the external auditor in 
the Annual Financial Statements;

•	Define a policy for non-audit services provided by the external auditor;

•	Pre-approve the contracts for non-audit services to be rendered by 
the external auditor;

•	Ensure that there is a process for the Audit Committee to be informed 
of any reportable irregularities (as identified in the Auditing Profession 
Act, 2005) identified and reported by the external auditor;

• Review the quality and effectiveness of the external audit process; and

•	Consider whether the audit firm and, where appropriate, the individual 
auditor that will be responsible for performing the functions of an 
auditor	are	accredited	as	such	on	the	JSE	list	of	Auditors	and	their	
advisors	as	required	by	the	JSE	Limited	Listings	Requirements.

• AUTHORITY
The Committee, in terms of its terms of reference as approved by the 
Board, has authority as follows:

•	The Committee recommends to the Board with regard to its 
statutory duties and is accountable in this respect to the Board.  
On all responsibilities delegated to it by the Board outside of the 
statutory duties, the Committee makes recommendations for 
approval by the Board.

•	The Committee acts in accordance with its statutory duties and the 
delegated authority of the Board as recorded in these terms of 
reference. It has the power to investigate any activity within the 
scope of its terms of reference.

•	The Committee, in the fulfillment of its duties, may call upon the 
chairman of the other Board committees, any of the executive 
directors, employees, and board secretary or assurance providers 
to provide it with information subject to Board approved process.

•	The Committee has reasonable access to the company’s records, 
facilities, employees and any other resources necessary to discharge 
its duties and responsibilities subject to following a Board-approved 
process.

•	The Committee may form, and delegate authority to, sub-committees 
and may delegate authority to one or more designated members 
of the Committee.

•	The Committee has the right to obtain independent outside 
professional advice to assist with the execution of its duties, at 
company’s cost, subject to a Board-approved process being followed.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND 
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee is chaired by a 
member of the Board appointed by the Board Chairperson. The Board has 
appointed an independent non-executive director, to serve as a member 
of the Committee and provide the required expertise to assist the Board 
in achieving its mandate. The Human Resources and Remuneration 
Committee has terms of reference, which outlines the composition and 
operations, and guides the functioning of the Committee.

The Committee’s primary function includes reviewing and 
recommending to the Board the following:

• To review the performance objectives, and determine and agree on, 
the appropriate levels of compensation, i.e. salary, bonus and incentive 
arrangements; 

• Human Resources Management and Development; and Staff Training 
and Development;

• Overall oversight responsibility on compensation matters of the 
organisation to review the design and management of organisation’s 
salary structures and incentive schemes and ensure proper 
authorisation for awards made under such schemes;

• To advise the Board on Human Resources and compensation matters;

• To recommend to the Board for approval, overall Human Resources Strategy;

GOVERNANCE REPORT ...continued



• To recommend to the Board for approval, key human resources policies 
and procedures in line with the corporate strategy and other statutory 
requirements; 

• To recommend to the Board for approval, overall compensation policy 
framework for the organisation and consider annually a report on the 
proposed salary increases for staff across the organisation; 

• To recommend to the Board for approval staff conditions of service 
and other related matters; 

• To recommend organisational structure to the Board for approval; and 

• To recommend to the Board, and monitor on behalf of the Board, the 
corporate training plan. 

ADJUDICATION OF 
LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATIONS
The Board, referred to as the Liquor Authority, has the key responsibility 
to consider, grant or reject liquor license applications in the Province.  
The Board established a committee comprising of 3 Board members 
and chaired by the Board Chairperson, to carry out the function of 
adjudication. The adjudication committee reports to the Board on all 
matters finalised by the Committee.

The Board, during the year of reporting, delegated certain adjudication 
responsibilities to the CEO for processing. The Board continued to 
provide oversight over the delegated responsibility to ensure that the 

entity and the clients we serve, were not compromised. The Board, 
however, met to consider the remainder of the undelegated function 
through its adjudication committee as reported on above.  

At the end of the year of reporting, the Board, in line with section 21(1) 
(a) (i) of the KZN Liquor Licensing Act no. 06 of 2010 amended in 2013, 
delegated to the CEO, the following applications as contemplated 
on the same Act, section 41, 52, 55, 69, 74, 75, 77 and 89(12). 
The delegation was subject to review by the Board at any given point. 
The Board ensured that due diligence was applied in consideration of 
all applications lodged in terms of the applicable Act.  

BOARD MEMBER REMUNERATION
The MEC for Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental 
Affairs, determined the rate for remuneration of Board members. 
The fee structure outlines the full terms for payment of each member, 
either for attendance at Board meetings, or participation in Board 
committees. The remuneration determinations by the MEC, further 
in the case of KZNLA, outline the rate for payment of members for 
adjudication processes. Board members were paid in accordance 
with the determinations, which clearly state that members are paid 
a retainer and attendance fee for Board meetings but are just paid a 
retainer for participation in Committee meetings. Members are paid 
an hourly rate for attendance at special meetings, if these are over and 
above the meetings prescribed within the retainer fee. 
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PERFORMANCE REWARDS
The KZNLA has a Performance Management Policy, which has been approved for implementation. The organisation also had no budget 
available to cater for performance bonuses, thus the Entity only implemented the pay progression(s) with only five employees not qualifying for 
pay progression(s).

TRAINING COSTS
The Entity has spent R215 920.50 on training for the 2017/18 financial year.

EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES 2017/18

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE REWARDS PERSONNEL EXPENDITURE % OF PERFORMANCE 
REWARDS TO TOTAL 
PERSONNEL COSTS

Top Management 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0

Professional Qualified 0 0 0

Skilled Technical 0 0 0

Semi-Skilled 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0

PROGRAMME 2017/18 NO. OF 
EMPLOYEES

2017/18
APPROVED 
POSTS

2017/18
NO. OF 
EMPLOYEES

2017/18
VACANCIES

% OF 
VACANCY RATE

CEO 3 3 1 2 66.7%

Social Responsibility 16 16 14 0 0%

Licensing 30 30 30 1 3.33%

Compliance 26 26 26 1 0.38%

Corporate Services 17 17 17 1 5.9%

Communication 1 1 1 0 0%

Human Resources 2 2 2 0 0%

Total 95 95 95 5 5.26%

We have a few frozen posts on the table below, they are as follows:
1x SR Manager
1x Legal Services Manager
1x Driver and
1x Help Desk Officer

PROGRAMME 2016/17
NO. OF 
EMPLOYEES

2016/17
NO. OF 
APPROVED 
POSTS

2016/17
NO. OF 
VACANCIES

% OF  
VACANCIES

Top Management 1 1 0 0%

Senior Management 3 3 1 33.3%

Professional Qualified 9 9 2 22.2%

Skilled Technical 43 43 1 2.32%

Semi-Skilled 29 29 1 3.4%

Unskilled 6 6 0 0%

Total 91 91 5 5.5%
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The current status of the organisation’s disability percentage is 1%. The organisation is required to be at 2%.  

RETIREMENT
The Entity has not had any retirements in the 2017/18 financial year.

RESIGNATIONS
Indicate how many employees have resigned during the 2017/18 financial year. 

ORGANISATION DISABILITY STATISTICS

OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORIES MALE FEMALE

CURRENT CURRENT 

Top Management 0 0

Senior Management 0 0

Professional Qualified 0 0

Skilled Technical 0 0

Semi-Skilled 1 0

Unskilled 0 0

Total 1 0

EQUITY TARGET AND EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS 
MALE FEMALE TOTAL

EMPLOYEE CATEGORY A C I W A C I W

Top Management 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

Senior Management 3 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 6

Professional Qualified 4 0 0 0 6 1 0 0 11

Skilled Technical 21 1 2 1 21 1 2 2 51

Semi-Skilled 10 2 1 3 20 1 1 3 41

Unskilled 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 3

Total Permanent 40 4 4 5 50 3 3 5 114

EXIT TYPE NUMBER % OF TOTAL STAFF LEAVING

Death 0 0

Dismissal-Operational 0 0

Dismissal-Misconduct 0 0

Resignation 5 5

Expiry of Contract 0 0

Discharge Due to Ill Health 0 0

Retirement 0 0

Other 0 0

Total 5 5

HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS ...continued
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BOARDING
The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority had no medical boardings in 2017/18.

EXPIRY OF CONTRACT
There were no employment contracts for the 2017/18 that have expired. 

INTERNSHIP
We had 35 interns during the 2017/2018 financial year, acquired through the Department of Higher Education and the Department of Economic 
Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs cooperation. Internship programme started in 01 November 2016 and ended in 31 October 2017. 
These interns were not remunerated from the KZNLA budget for this financial year as they were sponsored through the Entity’s mother department 
and the Department of Higher Education. 

TEMPS
The KZNLA has not had any Temporary Staff employed for the 2017/18 financial year. 

PERMANENT APPOINTMENT
We had 91 employees at the end of March 2018.

DISMISSAL
The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority has not had any dismissals for the 2017/18 financial year.

CODE OF CONDUCT
The Entity has a Disciplinary Policy in place and it stipulates the Code of Conduct for the Entity, which also serves as a guide and makes provision 
for progressive disciplinary actions for each category of offence. 
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The Audit and Risk Committee is an operating committee of the 
Board of KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority, charged with oversight of 
financial reporting and disclosure. The members of the Committee 
are drawn from and appointed by the company’s Board of directors, 
with the Chairperson remaining as the representative from the Board. 
The committee is charged with the responsibility to assist the Board in 
discharging its duties relating to the safeguarding of assets, effective 
management of liabilities and working capital, the operation of adequate 
systems and process of internal control and the preparation of financial 
reports and Annual Financial Statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY
The Audit Committee reports that it has performed its duties and 
complied with its responsibilities in accordance with the Public 
Finance Management Act and the Treasury Regulations. The Audit 
Committee also reports that it has approved terms of reference, which 
were adopted as the Audit and Risk Committee Charter, which the 
committee regulated its affairs in compliance with and discharged all 
its responsibilities as contained therein. The committee held a special 
meeting to consider and finalise the Annual Financial Statements for 
submission as per the PFMA requirements.

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE 
The Audit and Risk Committee, for the year under review, consisted of 
the members listed hereunder and met seven (7) times as per approved 
terms of reference, with three (3) special committee meetings held.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Audit and Risk Committee, considered the organisational Risk 
Register, which was reviewed by management with the assistance 
of Provincial Treasury. The Committee further assessed the risks as 
identified and ensured that Strategic Risks were effectively monitored. 
The Committee monitors the implementation of controls as identified, 
through reports tabled and interrogated during the Audit and Risk 
Committee meetings on a quarterly basis. The Audit and Risk Committee 
constantly monitors the rollout of risk management to ensure that this 
process reaches maturity within a reasonable time. The Committee 
engaged on a process to develop the Risk Management Framework, 
and guided management in this process.

The Committee considered and approved the Risk Management for the 
organisation, which guides the risk management process within the 
organisation. The Committee, also adopted a risk governance system, 
which assists the Committee in extracting required reports, which will 
guide the Committee in effectively providing the oversight as stipulated 
on the Committee terms of reference.  

INTERNAL AUDIT
Internal Audit was operated through an annual operational plan, 
between the KZNLA and Ngubane & Co., which was approved by the 
Board. The audit coverage included mainly recurring audits and focused 
on areas considered to be key. The results of the internal audits were 
presented to management for their response on findings and to the 
Audit and Risk Committee for final review, then to the Board for noting. 
The Audit and risk Committee also thoroughly interrogated the Internal 
Audit Operational Plan and ensured that the internal audit is effectively 
executed to the benefit of the organisation. 

EXTERNAL AUDIT
The Committee met with the external auditor to thoroughly engage 
on the Audit Strategy for the 2017/18 financial year. The Committee 
places strategies in place to ensure that processes run effectively for 
ease of Audit implementation. 

EVALUATION OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Committee:

• Considered all financial information;

• Considered the appropriateness of policies as developed;

• Met separately with management to discuss the draft financial 
statements, external auditors to consider the findings on the audit 
report and the audit unit at Treasury to plan for internal audit processes 
for the Liquor Authority;

• Made appropriate recommendations to the Board regarding corrective 
actions to be taken as a consequence of audit findings; and

• Reviewed and recommended for adoption by the Board financial 
information that is publicly disclosed within the Annual Report.

GOVERNANCE PROCESSES 
AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
The Committee reports that it has adopted appropriate terms of 
reference, which serve as the committee charter. All the committee 
affairs have been regulated in compliance with the committee charter, 
and discharging of committee responsibilities has been done in 
accordance with what is contained therein.

MEMBER NUMBER OF 
MEETINGS 
ATTENDED 

Mr. M. Thango – Chairperson 6

Mr. T. Zulu – Independent Member 5

Ms. C. Coetzee – Independent Member 7

Mr. E.M. Mashile – Ex-Officio Member 7

Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa – Ex-Officio Member 7
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The Audit and Risk Committee reviewed quarterly financial reports and is satisfied that controls are in place to monitor spending patterns.  
The quarterly reports were submitted to the Board for noting and to the Department of Economic Development and Tourism in line with the 
funding agreement. The committee also placed considerable effort in reviewing the performance of the organisation through considering and 
aligning performance information with the organisational performance as reported by management. The committee ensured that, there is a 
balance and justification in terms of financial performance and organisational performance of the organisation. Emphasis was placed on ensuring 
that the organisational plan for the 2017/18 financial year, is aligned to the budget allocations and the Committee is dedicated to ensuring that 
oversight, in ensuring that this is monitored, will be conducted.  

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GOVERNANCE 
The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it considered all IT policies as reviewed and made recommendations for consideration and approval 
by the Board. The Committee received reports from the IT Steering Committee, and is thus assured that sufficient oversight is exercised on IT 
Governance matters within the organisation. The Committee, upon realising that the liquor management system currently utilised by the Entity, 
is not assisting the Entity to efficiently execute its mandate, recommended that management working with the IT Steering Committee members, 
draft terms of reference of the development of a new system. The Committee is constantly updated and continuously provides required direction 
to management and advice to the Board in this regard.

The Audit and Risk Committee concurs with and accepts the Auditor-General’s conclusions on the Annual Financial Statements and is of the 
opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-General. 

Mr. M. Thango
Chairperson of the Audit Committee: 
KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE ...continued
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE KWAZULU-NATAL 
PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE ON KWAZULU-NATAL LIQUOR AUTHORITY

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION
1. I have audited the financial statements of the KwaZulu-Natal Liquor 

Authority set out on pages 44 to 67, which comprise the statement 
of financial position as at 31 March 2018, the statement of financial 
performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash flow 
statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority 
as at 31 March 2018, and its financial performance and cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with the South African Standards 
of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) 
and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of 
South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA).

BASIS FOR OPINION
3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards 

on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements section of this auditor’s report.

4. I am independent of the entity in accordance with the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for 
professional accountants (IESBA code) and the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the IESBA code.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

OTHER MATTER
6. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified 

in respect of this matter.

UNAUDITED DISCLOSURE NOTE
7. The public entity provided supplementary information in the 

financial statements on whether resources were obtained and 
used according to the legally adopted budget. The supplementary 
budget information set out on page 68 does not form part of the 
financial statements and is presented as additional information. 
Accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF ACCOUNTING 
AUTHORITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and

fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
generally recognised accounting practice and the requirements of 
the PFMA, and for such internal control as the accounting authority 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.

9. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is 
responsible for assessing the KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters relating to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the accounting authority either intends 
to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR-GENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR 
THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
10. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

11. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements is included in the annexure to this auditor’s report.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL 
PERFORMANCE REPORT
INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE
12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act 

No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, 
I have a responsibility to report material findings on the reported 
performance information against predetermined objectives for 
selected programmes presented in the annual performance report. 
I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather 
evidence to express assurance.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE ...continued
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13. My procedures address the reported performance information, 
which must be based on the approved performance planning 
documents of the public entity. I have not evaluated the 
completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators/ 
measures included in the planning documents. My procedures 
also did not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to 
planned performance strategies and information in respect of future 
periods that may be included as part of the reported performance 
information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.

14. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information in accordance with the criteria developed from the 
performance management and reporting framework, as defined 
in the general notice, for the following selected programmes 
presented in the annual performance report of the public entity 
for the year ended 31 March 2018:

PROGRAMMES PAGES IN 
THE ANNUAL 
PERFORMANCE 
REPORT

Programme 3 - licensing and administration 19-21

Programme 4 - compliance and enforcement 21-22

Programme 5 - social responsibility 23

15. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported 
performance information was properly presented and whether 
performance was consistent with the approved performance 
planning documents. I performed further procedures to determine 
whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and 
relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported performance 
information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

16. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability 
of the reported performance information for the selected 
programmes tabulated in paragraph 14 of my report.

OTHER MATTERS
17. I draw attention to the matters below.

ACHIEVEMENT OF PLANNED TARGETS
18. The annual performance report on pages 14 to 23 contains information 

on the achievement of planned targets for the year and explanations 
provided for the underachievement or overachievement of a 
significant number of targets.

ADJUSTMENT OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENTS
19. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance 

report submitted for auditing. These material misstatements were on 
the reported performance information of Programme 3 - licensing 
and administration, Programme 4 - compliance and enforcement 
and Programme 5 - social responsibility. I did not raise any material 
findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information as management subsequently corrected the misstatements.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE 
WITH LEGISLATION
INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE
20. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in 

terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings on 
the compliance of the entity with specific matters in key legislation. 
I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather 
evidence to express assurance.

21. The material finding on compliance with specific matters in key 
legislation is as follows:

EXPENDITURE MANAGEMENT
22. Effective steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful 

expenditure amounting to R178 101, as disclosed in note 23 to 
the annual financial statements, as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) 
of the PFMA. The fruitless and wasteful expenditure was caused 
by late payments of employees’ tax to the South African Revenue 
Service (SARS).

OTHER INFORMATION
23. The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. 

The other information comprises the information included in the 
annual report. The other information does not include the financial 
statements, the auditor’s report and those selected programmes 
presented in the annual performance report that have been 
specifically reported in this auditor’s report.

24. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported 
performance information and compliance with legislation do not 
cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion 
or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

25. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the 
selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, 
or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated.

26. I did not receive the other information prior to the date of this 
auditor’s report. After I receive and read this information, and if 
I conclude that there is a material misstatement, I am required 
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance 
and request that the other information be corrected. If the other 
information is not corrected, I may have to retract this auditor’s 
report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, 
if it is corrected this will not be necessary.



REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE KWAZULU-NATAL PROVINCIAL 
LEGISLATURE ON KWAZULU-NATAL LIQUOR AUTHORITY ...continued

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCY
27. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial 

statements, reported performance information and compliance with 
applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express 
any form of assurance on it.

28. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal 
control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on compliance 
with legislation included in this report.

LEADERSHIP
29. Leadership could not provide for adequate cash resources as a 

result of the change in the funding arrangement by the controlling 
department. The lack of cash resources resulted in the late payment 
of employees’ tax to SARS.

OTHER REPORTS
30. I draw attention to the following engagement conducted by various 

parties that had, or could have, an impact on the matters reported in 
the entity’s financial statements, reported performance information, 
compliance with applicable legislation and other related matters. 
These reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial 
statements or my findings on the reported performance information 
or compliance with legislation.

31. Five investigations were being conducted by the provincial treasury 
forensic unit and were still in progress. The investigations related 
to internal grievances surrounding the governance of the entity 
and were initiated in August 2016.

Pietermaritzburg
31	July	2018

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE ...continued
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ANNEXURE - AUDITOR-GENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT 

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout my 
audit of the financial statements, and the procedures performed on 
reported performance information for selected programmes and on 
the entity’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements 

as described in this auditor’s report, I also:

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

•	 evaluate	the	appropriateness	of	accounting	policies	used	and	the	
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the accounting officer.

•	 conclude	on	the	appropriateness	of	the	accounting	officer’s	use	
of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 

financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the KwaZulu-
Natal Liquor Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to 
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the 
financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information 
available to me at the date of this auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause an entity to cease continuing as 
a going concern.

•	 evaluate	the	overall	presentation,	structure	and	content	of	the	
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE 
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 
3. I communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among 

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that I identify during my audit.

4. I also confirm to the accounting authority that I have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to have a bearing on my independence and, where 
applicable, related safeguards.
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BOARD MEMBERS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL 

The members are required by the Public Finance Management Act 
(Act 1 of 1999), to maintain adequate accounting records and are 
responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial 
statements and related financial information included in this report. 
It is the responsibility of the members to ensure that the annual financial 
statements fairly present the state of affairs of the entity as at the end 
of the period and the results of its operations and cash flows for the 
period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an 
independent opinion on the annual financial statements and were 
given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data. 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) 
including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the 
Accounting Standards Board. 

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting 
policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent 
judgements and estimates. 

The members acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the 
system of internal financial control established by the entity and place 
considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. 
To enable the members to meet these responsibilities, the board of 
members sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk 
of error or deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include the 
proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, 
effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties 
to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored 
throughout the entity and all employees are required to maintain the 
highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s business is conducted 
in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. 
The focus of risk management in the entity is on identifying, assessing, 
managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the entity. 
While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to 
minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems 
and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined 
procedures and constraints. 

The members are of the opinion, based on the information and 
explanations given by management, that the system of internal control 
provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied 
on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. However, 
any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, 
and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or deficit. 

The members have reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast for the 
year to 31 March 2019 and, in the light of this review and the current 
financial position, they are satisfied that the entity has or has access 
to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future. 

The entity is substantially dependent on the Economic Development, 
Tourism and Environmental Affairs for continued funding of operations. 
The annual financial statements are prepared on the basis that the 
entity is a going concern and that the Provincial Treasury has neither 
the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale 
of the entity.The external auditors are responsible for independently 
reviewing and reporting on the entity’s annual financial statements. 
Although the entity generates revenue in the form of license fees, 
such revenue is wholly transferred to the Department of Economic 
Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs. 

The annual financial statements set out on pages 44 to 67, which have 
been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the 
board of members on 31 May 2018 and were signed on its behalf by: 

Ms. M.P. Myeni

Chairperson: Board of Directors

KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
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BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORT 

The members submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2018. 

1. INCORPORATION 
The Entity was established on 01 August 2012 in terms of section two 
of the KZN Liquor Licensing Act No.6 of 2010. The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor 
Authority went into operation on 01 November 2012. 

2. REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES 
MAIN BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 
• Manage and implement effective and efficient liquor administrative 

processes in terms of the receiving and processing of liquor applications. 

• To raise awareness and provide education on liquor issues 

• To implement enforcement and compliance with the prescripts of 
the applicable liquor legislation 

• Facilitate entry of the new entrants into liquor industry 

3. GOING CONCERN 
We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2018, the Entity had an 
accumulated surplus of R 9 578 343 and that the Entity’s assets exceed 
its total liabilities by R 9 578 343. 

Financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting 
policies applicable to going concern. This basis presumes that the funds 
will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation 
of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and 
commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

Notwithstanding the aforementioned statement, the Provincial Executive 
Council has resolved to initiate the process of rationalising Public Entities, 
falling under the Department of Economic Development, Tourism and  
Environment and Affairs and as the result, consultations are on-going on 
the merger of KZN Liquor Authority and KZN Gaming and Betting Board. 

4. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
The members are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since 
the end of the financial year. 

BOARD MEMBERS DESIGNATION DATE OF APPOINTMENT DATE OF RESIGNATION
Ms. M.P. Myeni Chairperson 01/05/2015
Ms. S. Pillay (Silochini) Deputy Chairperson 01/02/2013
Dr. C.N. Khumalo Board Member 01/05/2015
Mr. M. Thango Board Member 01/05/2017
Prof. B. Dumisa Board Member 01/05/2017
Inkosi M.I. Tembe Board Member 01/05/2017
Adv. B.J. Buthelezi Board Member 01/05/2015 10/04/2017
Ms. S. Pillay (Sulosh) Board Member 01/02/2013 30/04/2017

COMMITTEE MEMBERS DESIGNATION DATE OF APPOINTMENT DATE OF RESIGNATION
Ms. N.E. Mcoyi Human Resources Committee Member 01/08/2016
Ms. C. Coetzee Audit & Risk Committee Member 01/08/2016
Mr. T. Zulu Audit & Risk Committee Member 01/02/2013

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT DESIGNATION DATE OF APPOINTMENT DATE OF RESIGNATION
Mr. E.M. Mashile Chief Executive Officer 01/08/2012
Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa Chief Financial Officer 01/04/2012
Mr. S. Manelli Executive Manager 01/09/2015
Mr. M. Tsautse Executive Manager 01/09/2015
Ms. B.G. Shabalala Executive Manager 01/04/2012 31/05/2017

6. SECRETARY
KZNLA use Board Secretariat services through Statucor Company.

7. BANKERS
The banking institution that the KZNLA is using is ABSA Bank.

8. AUDITORS
Auditor-General is the current auditor for KZNLA and will continue in office for the next financial period.

5. BOARD MEMBERS
The members of the entity during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2018

Note(s) 2018
R

2017 RESTATED*
R

Assets
Current Assets
Prepayments 4 739 658 193 855
Receivables from exchange transactions 5 113 898 128 443
Cash and cash equivalents 6 13 800 403 14 097 477

14 653 959 14 419 775
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 2 369 574 3 124 638
Intangible assets 3 949 293 902 562

3 318 867 4 027 200
Total Assets 17 972 826 18 446 975

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation 7 289 233 58 028
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 8 2 000 000 -
Provisions 9 2 323 741 2 187 933
Payables from exchange transactions 10 2 493 962 2 852 141
Transfers payable (non-exchange) 11 350 908 517 043
Operating lease liability 12 936 639 570 410

8 394 483 6 185 555
Total Liabilities 8 394 483 6 185 555
Net Assets 9 578 343 12 261 420
Accumulated surplus 9 578 343 12 261 420

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Note(s) 2018
R

2017 RESTATED*
R

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Rendering of services 3 300 53 861
Interest received - investment 99 233 130 333
Total revenue from exchange transactions 102 533 184 194

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Other Income
Donations received 98 000 238 595

Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 13 75 990 000 73 753 000
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 76 088 000 73 991 595
Total revenue 76 190 533 74 175 789

Expenditure
Employee related costs 15 (41 971 371)  (41 176 638)
Administration 16 (473 694)  (472 518)
Depreciation and amortisation (2 043 667)  (2 563 405)
Finance costs 17 (248 297)  (21 217)
Board & Executive Member's remuneration  (7 090 970) (7 419 562)
General Expenses 14 (27 045 611) (24 934 572)
Total expenditure (78 873 610) (76 587 912)
Operating deficit  (2 683 077)  (2 412 123)
Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities  - (42 306)
Fair value adjustments  - 849 793

- 807 487
Deficit for the year (2 683 077) (1 604 636)



KZN LIQUOR AUTHORITY                            ANNUAL REPORT 2017  201846

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

ACCUMULATED 
SURPLUS

R

TOTAL NET ASSETS

R

Opening balance as previously reported 12 658 209 12 658 209
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments  1 207 847 1 207 847
Balance at 01 April 2016 as restated* 13 866 056 13 866 056
Changes in net assets
Deficit for the year  (1 604 636) (1 604 636)
Total changes (1 604 636) (1 604 636)
Balance at 01 April 2017 12 261 420 12 261 420
Changes in net assets
Deficit for the year (2 683 077) (2 683 077)
Total changes (2 683 077) (2 683 077)
Balance at 31 March 2018 9 578 343 9 578 343

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Note(s) 2018
R

2017 RESTATED*
R

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Grants 77 990 000 73 753 000
Interest income 99 233 130 333
Rendering of services 17 655 53 861

78 106 888 73 937 194

Payments
Employee costs (47 032 367) (48 589 367)
Suppliers (30 060 103) (23 537 150)
Finance costs (248 297) (21 217)

(77 340 767)  (72 147 734)
Net cash flows from operating activities 19 766 121 1 789 460

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 2 (446 951) (829 110)
Purchase of other intangible assets 3 (455 235) -
Net cash flows from investing activities (902 186) (829 110)

Cash flows from financing activities
Finance lease payments (161 009) (110 311)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (297 074) 673 054
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 14 097 477 13 424 423
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6 13 800 403 14 097 477
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

APPROVED
BUDGET

ADJUSTMENTS FINAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL 
AMOUNTS ON 
COMPARABLE 

BASIS

DIFFERENCE 
BETWEEN 

FINAL BUDGET 
AND ACTUAL

REFERENCE

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Rendering of services - - - 3 300 3 300 Note 31.1
Interest received - investment  - - - 99 233  99 233 Note 31.1
Total revenue from exchange transactions - - - 102 533  102 533

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Taxation revenue
Donations received - - - 98 000 98 000 Note 31.1
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 75 990 000 15 525 000 91 515 000 75 990 000 (15 525 000) Note 31.2
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 75 990 000 15 525 000 91 515 000 76 088 000 (15 427 000)
Total revenue  75 990 000 15 525 000 91 515 000 76 190 533 (15 324 467)

Expenditure
Personnel (43 325 144) - (43 325 144) (41 971 371) 1 353 773 Note 31.3
Administration (424 328) - (424 328) (473 694) (49 366) Note 31.4
Depreciation and amortisation (2 043 667) - (2 043 667) (2 043 667) -
Finance costs (248 297) - (248 297) (248 297) -
Board and Executive members renumeration (8 059 152) - (8 059 152) (7 090 970) 968 182 Note 31.5
General Expenses (21 889 412) (13 525 000) (35 414 412) (27 045 611) 8 368 801 Note 31.6
Total expenditure (75 990 000) (13 525 000) (89 515 000) (78 873 610) 10 641 390
Deficit before taxation - 2 000 000 2 000 000 (2 683 077) (4 683 077)
Actual Amount on Comparable Basis 
as Presented in the Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement - 2 000 000 2 000 000 (2 683 077) (4 683 077)

Reconciliation

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1. PRESENTATION OF 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), 
issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 
91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999). 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual 
basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost convention 
as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are 
presented in South African Rand. 

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where 
offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been 
consistently applied in the preparation of these annual financial 
statements, are disclosed below. 

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period. 

1.1 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS 
AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 
In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts represented 
in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of 
available information and the application of judgement is inherent 
in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ 
from these estimates which may be material to the annual financial 
statements. Significant judgements include: leave provisions, non-cash 
generating assets’ useful lives and depreciation methods, financial 
instruments at fair value, impairment of receivables and asset impairment. 
Notes relating to the subject are included under the affected areas of 
the financial statements. 

1.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are 
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental 
to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used 
during more than one reporting period. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised 
as an asset when: 

• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the item will flow to the entity; and 

• the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase 
price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted 
in arriving at the cost. 

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its 
cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange 
for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a combination of assets and 
non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair 
value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was not determinable, 
it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item 
and restoring the site on which it is located is also included in the cost 
of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to 
incur such expenditure, and where the obligation arises as a result of 
acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production 
of inventories. 

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, 
plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any impairment losses. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line 
basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual value. 

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been 
assessed as follows:
Item Average useful life
Furniture and fixtures 5 - 9 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment 3 - 9 years
IT equipment 2 - 8 years
Cellphones 2 years
Security Equipment 5 years

The residual value, the useful life and depreciation method of each asset 
are reviewed at least at end of each reporting date. If the expectations 
differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change 
in accounting estimate. 

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. 
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES ...continued

1.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ...continued
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or 
deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset. 

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the 
asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits 
or service potential expected from the use or disposal of the asset. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when the item is 
derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 

1.3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
An asset is identifiable if it either: 

• is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an 
entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either 
individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or 
liability, regardless of whether the entity intends to do so; or 

• arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), 
regardless of whether those rights are transferable or separable from 
the entity or from other rights and obligations. 

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar 
rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in the form of 
a contract. 

An intangible asset is recognised when: 
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service 

potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and 

• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits 
or service potential using reasonable and supportable assumptions 
that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic 
conditions that will exist over the useful life of the asset. 

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange 
transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured at its 
fair value as at that date. 

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) 
is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. 

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development 
phase of an internal project) is recognised when: 

• it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available 
for use or sale. 

• there is an intention to complete and use or sell it. 

• there is an ability to use or sell it. 

• it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential. 

• there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete 
the development and to use or sell the asset. 

• the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can 
be measured reliably. 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible 
assets are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life 
after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset may be 
impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining 
carrying amount is amortised over its useful life. 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a 
straight line basis, to their residual values as follows: 

Item Useful life 
Computer software 2 - 8 years 

Intangible assets are derecognised:

• on disposal; or 

• when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected 
from its use or disposal. 

1.4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause 
a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.
 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause 
a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. 

CLASSIFICATION 
Financial instruments are recognised on the statement of financial 
position when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument. Financial instruments include cash and bank balances, 
receivables and payables. These financial instruments are generally 
carried at their estimated fair value, which is the amount for which an 
asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable 
and willing parties in an arms length transaction. 

FINANCIAL ASSETS: 
The entity’s principal financial instruments are cash at bank and cash 
on hand and other receivables. 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES ...continued

1.4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ...continued

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES: 
The entity’s principal liabilities are trade and other payables. 

INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT 
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the entity becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. The entity 
classifies financial instruments, or their components parts, on initial 
recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument 
in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreement. 
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value costs when 
the entity is a party to the contractual arrangement. Subsequent to 
initial recognition these instruments are measured as set below: 

RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 
Trade and other receivables are stated at nominal value as reduced by 
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. The entity 
measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value. 

PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Trade and other payables are measured at their nominal value. 
The carrying amount of these payables approximates fair value due to 
the short period to maturity of these instruments.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value. The carrying 
amount approximates fair value due to the short period to maturity. 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and cash on hand.

1.5 LEASES
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an 
operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity 
assesses the classification of each element separately.

FINANCE LEASES - LESSEE
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement 
of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased 
asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. 
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement 
of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum 
lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge 
and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated 
 

to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

OPERATING LEASES - LESSEE
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. The difference between the amounts 
recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised 
as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.6 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-CASH-GENERATING ASSETS
Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the 
primary objective of generating a commercial return. When an asset 
is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-
orientated entity, it generates a commercial return.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential 
of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition of the loss of 
the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through 
depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in 
the statement of financial position after deducting any accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the 
disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the 
depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an 
asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing 
parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating 
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:

(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by 
the entity; or

(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained 
from the asset by the entity.

IDENTIFICATION
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds 
its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication 
that a non-cash-generating asset may be impaired. If any such indication 
exists, the entity estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES ...continued

1.7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in 
exchange for service rendered by employees.

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:

• an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before 
the normal retirement date; or

• an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange 
for those benefits.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than 
post-employment benefits and termination benefits) that are not due 
to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which 
the employees render the related service.

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional 
on future employment.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s 
actions where by an established pattern of past practice, published 
policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has 
indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and 
as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those 
other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than 
termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve months 
after the end of the period in which the employees render the 
related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:

•	wages,	salaries	and	social	security	contributions;

•	short-term	compensated	absences	(such	as	paid	annual	leave	and	
paid sick leave) where the compensation for the absences is due 
to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting 
period in which the employees render the related employee service;

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting 
period, the entity recognise the undiscounted amount of short-term 
employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

•	as	a	liability	(accrued	expense),	after	deducting	any	amount	already	
paid, and

• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the 
inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense 
as the employees render services that increase their entitlement or, in the 
case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity 
measure the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences 
as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of 
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination 
benefits) which are payable after the completion of employment.

Post-employment benefit plans are formal or informal arrangements 
under which an entity provides post-employment benefits for one or 
more employees.

Multi-employer plans are defined contribution plans (other than state 
plans and composite social security programmes) or defined benefit 
plans (other than state plans) that pool the assets contributed by various 
entities that are not under common control and use those assets to 
provide benefits to employees of more than one entity, on the basis 
that contribution and benefit levels are determined without regard 
to the identity of the entity that employs the employees concerned.

1.8 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
Provisions are recognised when:

• the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; and

• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected 
to be required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of 
a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be 
required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision 
is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement 
is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. 
The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised 
for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect 
the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no longer 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases 
in each period to reflect the passage of time. This increase is recognised 
as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision 
was originally recognised. Provisions are not recognised for future 
operating deficits.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES ...continued

1.8 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES ...continued
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation 
(net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and measured as 
a provision.

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:

• has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:

- the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating
unit concerned;

- the principal locations affected;

- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who 
will be compensated for services being terminated;

- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and

- when the plan will be implemented; and

• has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out 
the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or announcing 
its main features to those affected by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising 
from the restructuring, which are those that are both:

• necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and

• not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an 
operation until the entity is committed to the sale or transfer, that is, 
there is a binding arrangement.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity 
combinations that are recognised separately are subsequently measured 
at the higher of:
• the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and

• the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. 
Contingencies are disclosed in the note.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer 
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it 
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in 
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under 
pre-specified terms and conditions.

The entity recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan 
commitments when it is probable that an outflow of resources 

embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can 
be made.

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to 
financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications that an outflow 
of resources may be probable are:

• financial difficulty of the debtor;

• defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by
the debtor;

• breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being 
payable earlier than the agreed term and the ability of the debtor to 
settle its obligation on the amended terms; and

• a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest 
rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact on the ability of 
entities to repay their obligations.

Where a fee is received by the entity for issuing a financial guarantee 
and/or where a fee is charged on loan commitments, it is considered 
in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the 
obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is charged and the entity 
considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable, an entity 
recognises the obligation at the higher of:

• the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

• the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, 
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the Standard 
of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.

1.9 COMMITMENTS
Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself 
to future transactions that will normally result in the outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual 
commitments.

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair 
presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial statements, 
if both the following criteria are met:

• Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant 
cost (for example, contracts for computer or building maintenance 
services); and

• Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, 
state business of the entity – therefore salary commitments relating 
to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments 
are excluded.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES ...continued

1.10 REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential 
during the reporting period when those inflows result in an increase in 
net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or 
services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately 
equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) 
to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a 
liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s 
length transaction.

RENDERING OF SERVICES
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services 
can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the transaction is 
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction 
at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated 
reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated 
with the transaction will flow to the entity;

• the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can 
be measured reliably; and

• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the 
transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over 
a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a straight line basis 
over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other 
method better represents the stage of completion. When a specific 
act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of 
revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services 
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent 
of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of 
the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of completion is determined by.

INTEREST, ROYALTIES AND DIVIDENDS
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, 
royalties and dividends or similar distributions is recognised when:

• It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated 
with the transaction will flow to the entity, and

• The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest 
rate method.

Royalties are recognised as they are earned in accordance with the 
substance of the relevant agreements.

Dividends or similar distributions are recognised, in surplus or deficit, 
when the entity’s right to receive payment has been established.

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as 
revenue over the period during which the service is performed.

1.11 REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service 
potential received and receivable by an entity, which represents an 
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions 
from owners.

Income received from conditional grants, donations and subsidies is 
recognised in so far as the entity has complied with all of the criteria, 
conditions or obligations embodied in the applicable agreement. In 
so far as the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met, 
a liability is recognised and should the funds committed for future 
use, that such funds be repaid. Conditions on transferred assets are 
stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 
potential embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the 
recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential 
must be returned to the transferor.

In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either receives value from 
another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in 
exchange, or gives value to another entity without directly receiving 
approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct 
the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used, but do not 
specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required 
to be returned to the transferor if not deployed as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a 
binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a transferred asset by 
entities external to the reporting entity.

1.12 INVESTMENT INCOME
Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the 
effective interest method.

1.13 COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified/or restated 
in terms of GRAP 3.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES ...continued

1.14 UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE
Unauthorised expenditure means:

• overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and

• expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the 
case of a main division, not in accordance with the purpose of the 
main division.

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an 
expense in the statement of financial performance in the period that the 
expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance 
with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently 
accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.15 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and 
would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is 
recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance 
in the period that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is 
classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement 
of financial performance.

1.16 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure 
other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention of 
or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable 
legislation, including -

(a) this Act; or

(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any 
regulations made in terms of the Act; or

(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in 
that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued 
in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires the following 
(effective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the 
current financial and which was condoned before year end and/or 
before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded 
appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, 
no further action is also required with the exception of updating the 
note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the 
current financial year and for which condonement is being awaited 
at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. 
No further action is required with the exception of updating the note 
to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year 
and is only condoned in the following financial year, the register and 
the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with 
the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current 
financial year and which was not condoned by the National Treasury or 
the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular 
expenditure register. If liability for the irregular expenditure can be 
attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person 
is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover 
the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, 
the accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the 
amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note 
to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must 
also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not 
been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related 
thereto must remain against the relevant programme/expenditure item, 
be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated 
accordingly in the irregular expenditure register.

1.17 RELATED PARTIES
Parties are considered to be related to the entity if they have the 
ability to control or exercise significant influence over the entity or 
vise versa in making financial and operational decisions or if both 
parties are subject to common control. Management are those persons 
responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the 
entity, including those charged with the governance of the entity in 
accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to 
perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those 
family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced 
by, that management in their dealings with the entity.

Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the 
ordinary course of business are disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017

COST /
VALUATION

ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION

CARRYING 
VALUE

COST /
VALUATION

ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION

CARRYING 
VALUE

2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture and fixtures 3 542 278 (2 451 875)  1 090 403 3 121 210 (1 889 336) 1 231 874
Motor vehicles 394 049 (394 049) - 394 049  (315 239) 78 810
Office equipment 588 460 (451 496) 136 964 561 756 (399 671) 162 085
IT equipment 4 225 954 (3 482 923) 743 031 4 161 474  (2 721 321) 1 440 153
Cellphones 566 136 (298 782)  267 354 231 075 (177 038) 54 037
Security Equipment 295 496 (163 674) 131 822 262 799  (105 120) 157 679
Total 9 612 373 (7 242 799) 2 369 574 8 732 363 (5 607 725) 3 124 638

OPENING
BALANCE

ADDITIONS DEPRECIATION TOTAL

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2018
Furniture and fixtures 1 231 874 421 068 (562 539) 1 090 403
Motor vehicles 78 810  - (78 810) -
Office equipment 162 085 26 704 (51 825) 136 964
IT equipment 1 440 153 64 480 (761 602) 743 031
Cellphones 54 037 335 061 (121 744) 267 354
Security Equipment 157 679 32 699 (58 556) 131 822

3 124 638 880 012 (1 635 076) 2 369 574

OPENING
BALANCE

ADDITIONS DISPOSALS REVALUATIONS DEPRECIATION TOTAL

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2017
Furniture and fixtures 1 587 254 136 714 (34 418) 17 209 (474 885) 1 231 874
Motor vehicles 157 620 - - - (78 810) 78 810
Office equipment 211 744 22 719  - 14 448 (86 826) 162 085
IT equipment 1 079 102 665 578 (7 887) 566 677 (863 317) 1 440 153
Cellphones 164 109 4 099 - - (114 171) 54 037
Security Equipment 210 239 - - - (52 560) 157 679

3 410 068 829 110 (42 305) 598 334 (1 670 569) 3 124 638

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
for the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017

COST /
VALUATION

ACCUMULATED
AMORTISATION

CARRYING 
VALUE

COST /
VALUATION

ACCUMULATED
AMORTISATION

CARRYING 
VALUE

3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer software 4 653 983 (3 704 690) 949 293 4 198 748 (3 296 186) 902 562

OPENING
BALANCE

ADDITIONS AMORTISATION TOTAL

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2018
Computer software  902 562  455 235 (408 504) 949 293

OPENING
BALANCE

REVALUATIONS AMORTISATION TOTAL

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017
Computer software 1 338 856 251 458 (687 752) 902 562

2018
R

2017 
R

4. PREPAYMENTS
Prepayments relate to rent, subscription and licence fees paid in advance to different 
service providers.
Licences 322 331 193 855
Rent 417 327 -

739 658 193 855

5. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Staff debtors 32 660 47 205
Deposits 81 238 81 238

113 898 128 443

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand 346 1 805
Bank balances 13 800 057 14 095 672

13 800 403 14 097 477
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
for the year ended 31 March 2018

2018
R

2017 
R

7. FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATION

The Entities leases all its cellphones under a finance lease agreement from Vodacom which 
commenced on 01 December 2017. The annual payment is R445 501.14 and the lease is over  
24 months. The interest rate is set at 10%. Ownership of the cellphones will pass to Entity at the 
end of the lease agreement.

Minimum lease payments due
• within one year 280 095 58 057
• in second to fifth year inclusive  162 393  1 707

442 488 59 764
less: future finance charges  (153 255) (1 736)
Present value of minimum lease payments 289 233 58 028

Present value of minimum lease payments due
• within one year 155 673 56 392
• in second to fifth year inclusive 133 560 1 636

289 233 58 028

8. UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND RECEIPTS
Research on Liquor Industry Governance Issues
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Additions during the year 2 000 000 -
Income recognition during the year - -
Balance at end of the year 2 000 000 -

OPENING
BALANCE

ADDITIONS TOTAL

9. PROVISIONS
Reconciliation of provisions - 2018
Leave provision 2 187 933 135 808 2 323 741

OPENING
BALANCE

ADDITIONS TOTAL

Reconciliation of provisions - 2017
Leave provision  1 808 202 379 731 2 187 933

Provision for leave is calculated at a current salary rate multiplied by a number of available leave days due to employees at the reporting date.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued



KZN LIQUOR AUTHORITY                            ANNUAL REPORT 2017  201859

2018
R

2017 
R

10. PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Trade payables 2 215 975 2 616 574
Accrued bonus 277 987 235 567

2 493 962 2 852 141

11. TRANSFERS PAYABLE (NON-EXCHANGE)
Transfers payable - EDTEA 350 908 517 043

12. OPERATING LEASE ACCRUAL
Operating lease accrual 936 639  570 410

13. GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES
Recognised as income
Unconditional grant 75 990 000 73 753 000

14. GENERAL EXPENSES
Advertising 558 844 345 210
Attendance fees 1 964 204 1 566 635
Auditors remuneration 1 275 894 1 146 499
Bank charges 44 476 46 050
Catering 55 434  64 017
Cleaning 398 685 146 782
Computer expenses - 459 632
Consulting and professional fees 2 096 525 2 892 837
Electricity 484 444 492 768
Repairs and maintenance 220 869 102 795
Internal audit fees 521 530 -
Parking costs 925 755 -
Hire - 52 743
IT expenses 229 910 538 870
Insurance 193 861 180 193
Lease rentals on operating leases 4 227 811 4 942 303
Marketing  - 474 089
Office set-up cost 1 537 674 350 679
Postage and courier 48 000 318 504
Printing and stationery 1 580 771  1 278 463
Security 1 665 127 1 257 829
Software expenses 322 615 250 915
Special projects 392 053 725 111
Staff welfare 182 888 159 496
Subscriptions and membership fees 1 607 145 1 304 769
Telephone and fax 445 501 647 548
Training 650 172 1 077 437
Travel - local 4 678 227 3 610 398
Venue expenses 737 196 502 000

27 045 611 24 934 572

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
for the year ended 31 March 2018
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2018
R

2017 
R

15. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS
Basic 41 194 627 39 900 407
Bonus 42 420 114 285
UIF 164 117 354 678
SDL 434 399  427 537
Leave pay provision charge 135 808 379 731

41 971 371 41 176 638

16. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURE
Administration and management fees - third party 473 694 472 518

17. FINANCE COSTS
Finance leases 70 196 11 217
SARS 178 101 10 000

248 297 21 217

18. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
Fees (included in the general expenditure above) 1 275 894 1 146 499

19. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Deficit (2 683 077) (1 604 636)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation  2 043 667 2 563 405
Gain on sale of assets and liabilities  - 42 306
Fair value adjustments -  (849 793)
Finance costs - Finance leases 70 196 11 217
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals 366 229 558 590
Movements in provisions 135 808 379 731
Donations received  (98 000)  (238 596)
Other non-cash items (88) -
Other non-cash items (13 043) -
Changes in working capital:
Receivables from exchange transactions  14 545 (43 190)
Prepayments (545 803) (12 095)
Payables from exchange transactions (358 178) 1 058 278
Taxes and transfers payable (non exchange) (166 135) (75 757)
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 2 000 000 -

766 121 1 789 460

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
for the year ended 31 March 2018
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2018
R

2017 
R

20. COMMITMENTS
Operational expenditure
• Approved and contracted 4 469 500 4 747 878
• Approved and not contracted - -

4 469 500 4 747 878

Capital expenditure
• Approved and contracted: Property, plant and equipment - 210 048
• Approved but not yet contracted: Property, plant and equipment  - -
• Approved and contracted: LMS system  5 351 143 -

5 351 143 210 048

Approved operational expenditure and capital commitments
Authorised capital expenditure 9 820 643 4 957 926

Operating leases
Minimum lease payments due
• within one year 3 915 430 3 593 873
• in second to fifth year inclusive 8 795 622 12 600 521

12 711 052 16 194 394

The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority leases a building from Delta Property Fund Limited effective 
01 April 2016. The lease period will end 31 March 2021. The monthly payment is R277 305 with 
an escalation of 8%.

Minimum lease payments due
• within one year 95 624 250 429
• in second to fifth year inclusive - 108 064
• later than five years - -

95 624 358 493

The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority leases a building from Zevoli Properties for a period of  
24 months, effective 01 September 2016. The remaining period for the lease is 18 months ending 
31 August 2018. The lease payment is R17 393 per month with an annual escalation clause of 9%.

Minimum lease payments due
• within one year 527 226 159 564
• in second to fifth year inclusive 195 259 -
• later than five years - -

722 485  159 564

The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority leases a building from Sarosma Trust for a period of 2 years, 
effective 01 August 2015. The lease expired on 31 July 2017. A new lease agreement was signed 
for a period of 2 years, effective 01 August 2017. The remaining lease period is 16 months ending 
30 July 2019. The lease payment is R48 815 with an annual escalation clause of 8%.

Minimum lease payments due
• within one year 224 769 204 943
• in second to fifth year inclusive 221 048 -

445 817 204 943

The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority leases a building from Zelpy for a period of 2 years, effective 
01 April 2016. The lease expired on 31 March 2018 and was extended to 28 February 2020. 
The lease payment is R18 445 per month with an annual escalation of 8%.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
for the year ended 31 March 2018
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R

2017 
R

20. COMMITMENTS ...continued
Minimum lease payments due
• within one year 241 468 132 275
• in second to fifth year inclusive 123 679 -

365 147 132 275

The KwaZulu-Natal Liquor Authority leases a building from Harcourts for a period of 2 years, effective 
01 October 2016. The lease expired on 30 September 2017. A new lease agreement was signed 
for a period of 2 years, effective 01 October 2017. The remaining lease period is 18 months ending 
30 September 2019. The lease payment is R19 632 per month with an annual escalation clause of 8%.

21. RELATED PARTIES
The entity is wholly dependent on the Department of Economic Development, Tourism and 
Environmental Affairs - KZN for continued funding of operations.

Related party balances
Transfers payable (non - exchange)
Transfers payable - Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs - KZN 350 908 517 043

Related party transactions
Goverment grants received
Unconditional grant 75 990 000  73 753 000
Conditional grant 2 000 000 -

77 990 000 73 753 000

Amounts received from related party
Revenue - licence fees 25 352 789 24 857 344
Bank charges - licence fees (41 572) (400 870)
Amount transferred to EDTEA 25 311 217 24 456 474

Donations received from (paid to) related parties
KZN Film Commission  - 238 595

During the period under review the entity occupied offices on a temporary basis on the premises 
belonging to Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs - KZN.

22. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
Opening balance 383 040  -
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year - 383 040
Less: Amounts condoned - -

383 040 383 040

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification
Current year  - 383 040
Prior years 383 040 -

383 040 383 040

23. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
Opening balance 10 000 -
Add: Fruitless and wasterful Expenditure - current year  178 101 10 000
Less: Amounts condoned - -

188 101 10 000

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification
Current year 178 101 10 000
Prior years 10 000 -

188 101 10 000

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
for the year ended 31 March 2018
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
for the year ended 31 March 2018

BOARD MEMBERS FEES
R

TOTAL 
R

2017
Ms. S. Pillay (Silochini) 394 967 394 967
Mr. T. Zulu 41 324 41 324
Mr. S. Gumede 30 024 30 024
Brig. A.R. Harry 26 506 26 506
Dr. C.N. Khumalo 368 276 368 276
Adv. B.J. Buthelezi 651 811 651 811
Ms. S. Pillay (Sulosh) 204 028 204 028
Ms. N.E. Mcoyi 22 036 22 036

1 738 972 1 738 972

BOARD MEMBERS FEES
R

TOTAL 
R

Non-executive
2018
Ms. M.P. Myeni 553 983 553 983
Ms. S. Pillay (Silochini) 397 945 397 945
Mr. S. Gumede 58 257 58 257
Adv. B.J. Buthelezi 176 776 176 776
Ms. N.E. Mcoyi  36 195 36 195
Mr. M. Thango 217 263 217 263
Prof. B. Dumisa 254 282 254 282
Inkosi M.I. Tembe  120 216 120 216

1 814 917 1 814 917

BASIC  
SALARY

MEDICAL 
AID

PENSION 
FUND

TRAVEL
ALLOWANCE

UIF  
& SDL

TOTAL

24. BOARD AND EXECUTIVE MEMBERS REMUNERATION
Executive
2018
Mr. E.M. Mashile 1 191 995 44 121 86 449 300 000 15 681 1 638 246
Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa 997 802 4 184 60 387 78 000 11 825 1 152 198
Ms. B.G. Shabalala 224 899  - 9 703 16 666 2 760 254 028
Mr. S. Manelli 991 660 - 59 861 72 000 11 679 1 135 200
Mr. M. Tsautse 925 292  - 57 814 102 000 11 275 1 096 381

4 331 648 48 305 274 214 568 666 53 220 5 276 053

BASIC  
SALARY

MEDICAL  
AID

PENSION 
FUND

TRAVEL
ALLOWANCE

UIF  
& SDL

TOTAL

2017
Mr. E.M. Mashile 1 097 091 40 362  78 963 300 000 14 770 1 531 186
Mr. B.B. Mbanjwa  896 363 22 665 54 284 78 000 11 056 1 062 368
Ms. B.G. Shabalala 897 032  - 54 284  99 996 11 012 1 062 324
Mr. S. Manelli 918 051 - 54 254 72 000 10 998 1 055 303
Mr. M. Tsautse 859 310 - 52 807 102 000 10 666 1 024 783

4 667 847 63 027 294 592 651 996 58 502 5 735 964
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
for the year ended 31 March 2018

2018
R

2017 
R

25. RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the organisation may not be able to meet its financial obligations 
as they fall due. The entity’s risk is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. 
The current ratio is 2.29:1 therefore the entity will be more capable to pay its current obligations 
and will continue operations at desired levels.

Credit risk
The entity does not have any customers and trade debtors. Staff loans are the only financial 
asset exposed to credit risk. Credit risk in respect of staff loans is managed by the entity by 
recovering the debt from employees salary. Credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is 
limited to due to the nature of the entity’s business and its reliance on government grant as 
the main source of funding.

Market risk
Interest rate risk
Market risk refers to the risk that the value of an investment will decrease due to moves in market 
factors. The entity is not exposed to any long term loans. As the entity has no significant interest-
bearing liabilities, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent 
of changes in market interest rates. Staff loans bear no interest.

Capital management
The entity maintains sufficient and equal levels of working capital, current assets and current 
liabilities. This helps the entity to meet its expense obligation while also maintaining sufficient 
cashflow and is primarily related to short term finance decisions. The entity is not subject to any 
externally imposed capital requirements.

Cash and cash equivalents 13 800 403 14 097 477
Prepayments 739 658 193 855

14 540 061 14 291 332

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
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AT FAIR VALUE
R

TOTAL 
R

2017
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 128 443 128 443
Cash and cash equivalents 14 097 477 14 097 477
Prepayments 193 855 193 855

14 419 775 14 419 775

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 2 852 141 2 852 141
Taxes and transfers payable (non-exchange)  517 043  517 043

3 369 184 3 369 184

27. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
At the reporting date, management was not aware of any post reporting events.

AT FAIR VALUE
R

TOTAL 
R

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE
Categories of financial instruments
2018
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 113 898 113 898
Cash and cash equivalents 13 800 403 13 800 403
Prepayments 739 658 739 658

14 653 959 14 653 959

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 2 493 962  2 493 962
Taxes and transfers payable (non-exchange) 350 908 350 908

2 844 870 2 844 870

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
for the year ended 31 March 2018
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R

2017 
R

28. PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS
In the previous financial years, the useful lives of property, plant and equipment were not 
appropriately considered. Some of the items of property, plant and equipment had also been 
recognised as office set-up costs and not capitalised. This resulted in an error in the depreciation 
expense, as well as the carrying value of the property, plant and equipment.

The correction of the misstatement results in adjustments as follows:

Statement of Financial Position
Increase in property, plant and equipment cost 416 835
Increase in property, plant and equipment - accumulated depreciation (155 407)
Effect on accumulated surplus 261 428

Statement of Financial Performance
Decrease in office set-up cost (416 835)
Increase in depreciation and amortisation expense 155 407
Effect on surplus or deficit (261 428)

Statement of Financial Position
Accumulated Depreciation (Office Equipment)  - 326 704
Impact Due to the change in estimate -  (641 502)

- (314 798)

Statement of Financial Performance
Depreciation (Office Equipment) - 326 704
Impact Due to the change in estimate  - (11 906)

- 314 798

Statement of Financial Position
Accummulated Depreciation (Computer Software) - (823 750)
Impact Due to the change in estimate  - 518 745

- (305 005)

Statement of Financial Performance
Depreciation (Computer Software)  - 823 750
Impact Due to the change in estimate  - (518 745)

- 305 005

Statement of Financial Position
Accumulated Depreciation (Computer Equipment) - (580 356)
Impact Due to the change in estimate  - 305 557

- (274 799)

Statement of Financial Performance
Depreciation (Computer Equipment)  - 580 356
Impact Due to the change in estimate  - (305 557)
 - 274 799

Statement of Financial Position
Accumulated Depreciation (Furniture) - (1 403 843)

Statement of Financial Performance
Depreciation (Furniture) - 1 403 843

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
for the year ended 31 March 2018
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2018
R

2017 
R

29. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
In the current period repairs and maintenance have been categorised as general expenses in the 
statement of financial performance as management believes this better represents the nature of 
the expense and the significance thereof in the entity’s financial statements.

The effects of the reclassification on the comparative figures are as follows:

Statement of Financial Performance
Reduction in repairs and maintenance (102 795)
Increase in general expenses 102 795
Effect on surplus or deficit -

30. CHANGE IN ESTIMATE
Property, plant and equipment

In terms of GRAP 17- Property, Plant and Equipment, the entity is required to assess the useful lives, 
residual values and depreciation methods af assets each reporting period date. In the current financial 
year, the management have revised the useful lives of 501 assets. The revision was accounted for a 
change in accounting estimates. The remaining useful lives were reviewed based on the condition 
assestment carrried out during physical verification.

Impact on Statement of Financial Perfomance
Depreciation (office equipment) 401 624 -
Increase / (reduction) due to change in estimate 4 048 -

405 672 -

Amortisation (computer software) 687 752 -
Increase / (reduction) due to change in estimate (116 006) -

571 746 -

Depreciation (computer equipment) 863 317 -
Increase / (reduction) due to change in estimate (101 441) -

761 876 -

Depreciation (Furniture) 1 878 727 -
Impact Due to the change in estimate 53 667 -

1 932 394 -

31. BUDGET DIFFERENCES
Material differences between budget and actual amounts
31.1 The Entity does not budget for rendering of services, interest received and donations received.
31.2 The difference is due to R2 million additional funding and R13 million roll-over from Treasury.
31.3 The Personnel difference is due to vacant posts.
31.4 The Administration difference is because of the increase of GLA benefits.
31.5 This includes the vacant post of the Executive Manager.
31.6 The R8 million is for the IT system being developed.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...continued
for the year ended 31 March 2018
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